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 1                        BEFORE THE WASHINGTON STATE

                     UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION

 2   

 3   SIL AND CANDY ARATA, HAHN     )  DOCKET UW-102014

     AND KIM BAHNG, BRIG AND       )

 4   PATTIE BELVIN, DICK AND       )  VOLUME II

     PATTI BLIDE, JIM AND LYNETTE  )

 5   CALDWELL, KRIS AND CAROLYN    )  PAGES 74 - 108

     CHRISTIANSON, TED AND DELL    )

 6   HALLER, BILL AND ALTHEA       )

     HEAGY, VERN HERIOTT AND       )

 7   LARRY HUFFMAN, DAVE AND       )

     DOROTHY JOHNSON, SHINWON AND  )

 8   JEONKAK KIM, JAN AND ROBIN    )

     KRANE, ROBERT AND DIANA       )

 9   NEHLS, PHIL AND CAROLYN       )

     ROBBINS, CHUCK AND DIA        )

10   TADLOCK, BILL AND CAROL       )

     WELCH, RON AND ROXANNE, OLSON,)

11   JERRY AND PHOEBE BENNETT,     )

     AND ALAN AND SUSAN CAMERON,   )

12                                 )

               Complainants,       )

13                                 )

     vs.                           )

14                                 )

     GREEN MOUNTAIN H2O, LLC,      )

15                                 )

               Respondents.        )

16   ______________________________)

17          This is the hearing, Volume II, in the above matter held

18   on Wednesday, March 2, 2011, at 10:30 a.m., at 1300 South

19   Evergreen Park Drive Southwest, Olympia, Washington, before

20   Administrative Law Judge ADAM E. TOREM.

21            The parties were present as follows:

22            WASHINGTON UTILITIES AND TRANSPORTATION COMMISSION, by

     Michael A. Fassio, Assistant Attorney General, P.O. Box 40128,

23   Olympia, Washington, 98504-0128.  Telephone number is

     (360) 664-1189.

24   

     Lesley E. Kay, CCR No. 3244

25   Court Reporter
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 1            Mr. Dan Class, owner of Green Mountain H20 Company,

     307 NE 85th Street, Vancouver, Washington, 98665.  Telephone

 2   number is (360) 909-4321.

 3            Mr. Chuck Tadlock, spokesperson for the complainants.

 4            Ms. Dorothy Jaffe, Assistant Attorney General,

     representing the Department of Health, Office of Drinking

 5   Water.

 6            ALSO PRESENT:  Bill Heagy, Ted Haller, Ron Olson,

     Richard Blide, Phil Robbins, Sophia Petro and Gael Kantz.
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 1                            P R O C E E D I N G S

 2             JUDGE TOREM:  On the record in Docket UW-102014.

 3   This is the Green Mountain H20, LLC, status conference that we

 4   scheduled last month.  The date is Wednesday, March 2nd.  It's

 5   a little after 10:30.

 6            I want to go around the room and take appearances and

 7   sort out, maybe for Mr. Tadlock, who's here in person for the

 8   Columbia Crest Homeowners and who you expect to be on the line

 9   and maybe we can address on the record some of the proxies.

10            I got a phone call about ten minutes ago from

11   Mr. Class saying he should be on the bridge line and also had

12   e-mailed in some items that he'll discuss.  I don't think we'll

13   take up the substance of those, as I told him today.  This will

14   be more of a scheduling conference.

15            Once we take appearances and we get to you, Mr. Class,

16   you can, at least, tell the folks what you e-mailed in and when

17   they might expect to get copies of them if we expect to do it

18   that way.

19            Let's start with the Commission staff.

20            MR. FASSIO:  Good morning, Your Honor.  Michael Fassio

21   representing Commission staff, Assistant Attorney General.

22            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.

23            MS. JAFFE:  Dorothy Jaffe, Assistant Attorney General.

24            JUDGE TOREM:  Good morning.

25            Mr. Tadlock.
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 1            MR. TADLOCK:  Chuck Tadlock representing the

 2   complainants.

 3            JUDGE TOREM:  We have a number of other homeowners

 4   here with you.  Can you tell me who's in person today?

 5            MR. TADLOCK:  Yes, Your Honor.

 6            In attendance is Ron Olson, Bill Heagy, Dick Blide,

 7   Ted Haller and Phil Robbins.

 8            JUDGE TOREM:  They're all here in person today.

 9   Trying to keep my scorecard straight here.

10            On the telephone from the Columbia Crest Homeowners,

11   are there any other entering telephonic interest today that you

12   know of?

13            MR. TADLOCK:  Not that I'm aware of, Your Honor.

14            JUDGE TOREM:  Let me take a quick role call.

15            Are there any other complainants that are on the line

16   there today?

17            I believe we have the rest, have made the appropriate

18   proxies to you.

19            One I have a question about -- Mr. Christianson was

20   here last time?

21            MR. TADLOCK:  He's not present today, Your Honor.

22            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Nehls was, I believe, over the

23   telephone line last time.

24            MR. TADLOCK:  I'll have to check, Your Honor.  I

25   thought we had a proxy for Mr. Nehls.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  We may have one from his wife Diana.

 2            MR. TADLOCK:  Yes, Your Honor.  I believe we had a

 3   proxy for Bob Nehls.  I think we had a proxy at the last one.

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  He was also on the telephone line.

 5   That's why I want to make sure.

 6            The rest of the proxies, as we discussed, other than

 7   the ones you updated, we're still going to carry over to today.

 8            Green Mountain H20, LLC.  Is Mr. Class on the line?

 9            MR. CLASS:  Yes.

10            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Class, when we spoke last time you

11   were considering seeking legal counsel.  Have you done so?

12            MR. CLASS:  I have not yet, no.

13            JUDGE TOREM:  Let's review.  When we left off last

14   time we had asked for the Department of Health to submit its

15   water testing results.  Those, I understand, came into the

16   record center electronically on Monday.  If I understood

17   Ms. Waybright's letter, those had arsenic tests for the year

18   2009 and 2010 and they also had the coliform monthly tests for

19   the same period of time.

20            Ms. Jaffe, is that your understanding of what was

21   submitted?

22            MS. JAFFE:  That's correct, with respect to arsenic,

23   although, as I look at the spreadsheet that was sent, the

24   Columbia Crest arsenic sample histories are dating back to

25   January 1, 2006, and the coliform violations are for 2009 and
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 1   2010.  So arsenic dates back to 2006.

 2            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  I think those have been

 3   distributed by the record center or just by Ms. Waybright's

 4   e-mail to representatives of each party.

 5            This morning at about 10:15 I got a phone call from

 6   our records center.  Ms. Higgins had received five different

 7   e-mails with different documents from Mr. Class.

 8            Mr. Class, you explained to me those documents were

 9   other tests that you had sought, including 2011 testing for

10   January and February, and you were submitting those to

11   supplement what Ms. Waybright had already submitted.  Is that

12   correct?

13            MR. CLASS:  That is correct.  I'm not sure -- my

14   understanding that Teresa Walker had C.J. Bruno -- I thought

15   that's how this -- when we were last in your courtroom you had

16   asked to get current bacteria and arsenic results, I believe.

17            So when I received the DOH's information, you know, it

18   has through 2000 -- it has through January but it doesn't have

19   February, and, so, I was including the February also results

20   that C.J. Bruno had taken.

21            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Mr. Class, for those

22   submissions.

23            As I indicated earlier, if we get to a point today,

24   which I hope to schedule a hearing in this case, then those

25   exhibits you're submitting can go to what the current standards
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 1   are and we'll probably give a chance for the Department of

 2   Health to give us the most updated results, as well.

 3            MR. CLASS:  I also forwarded those to Department of

 4   Health --

 5            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you.  As you know, the standard in

 6   this case is that the Utilities Commission does economic

 7   regulation and we don't actually do the testing.  It indicates

 8   that we have to request those tests from the Department of

 9   Health.  That's the primary source for me to get the compliance

10   with the State Drinking Water Act information.

11            Certainly you are going to be permitted to question

12   the submitter of those results and provide any alternative

13   sources that you might think be given more weight, and those

14   will be subjected to cross-examination as well, but that will

15   be an issue of what is the evidence of compliance and we'll

16   take that up at the hearing itself.

17            What I hope to do today is also set deadlines for all

18   parties to submit their witness lists and any list of exhibits

19   and get those on the deadline for everyone to have them so we

20   can determine what the issues will be at the hearing and no one

21   will be surprised on the day of hearing.  This is the kind of

22   proceeding we want everybody to communicate in advance and plan

23   out their arguments and points if they want to make and be sure

24   any burdens of proof can be carried to the people that need to

25   do so.
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 1            Let me turn quickly to the Department of Health and

 2   find out what its role in this case might be.  Last time we had

 3   thought about whether your client, Ms. Jaffe, would be filing

 4   today either oral addition to intervene or simply here's a

 5   resource for the Commission to provide the water testing

 6   results or, perhaps, a witness per Commission staff to call on

 7   to help bring in that information.

 8            MS. JAFFE:  Department of Health believes that its

 9   best role is to provide information to UTC as needed.  Any

10   additional testing results or to be available as a witness, we

11   don't believe that intervention is appropriate in this case.

12            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Thank you.

13            Then let's turn to the other issues we needed to look

14   at procedurally.  I also suggested to the parties that it might

15   be wise to consider, at least, and maybe to proceed with, a

16   mediation in this case and to seek some alternative dispute

17   resolution as a form of settlement.

18            This was the complainants' option.  I don't know,

19   Mr. Tadlock, if you talked with other homeowners or Commission

20   staff on this route.  Was that something you wanted to pursue?

21            MR. TADLOCK:  Thank you, Your Honor.

22            Yes, I've discussed this is the Columbia Crest Estate

23   Homeowner's Board of Directors and we are looking and seeking

24   any way possible to try to come to closure on this complaint.

25   The homeowners and the complainants are willing to enter into
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 1   mediation.  We would request an initial meeting with Mr. Class,

 2   if he accepts the offer for mediation, to have an initial

 3   meeting to discuss mediation to see if it's possible that

 4   there's grounds that would support going into mediation.

 5            We'd like to do that, if possible, around the middle

 6   of this month and then if we can move forward in mediation we'd

 7   like to spend the last couple of weeks of this month in

 8   mediation with Mr. Class.

 9            We wish to thank the UTC for the offer of hosting the

10   mediation and supporting the mediation with the mediator.

11            JUDGE TOREM:  You might want to speak up a little bit

12   so Mr. Class can hear you.

13            MR. CLASS:  Thank you.  I have been hearing.

14            MR. TADLOCK:  So, based on that, we were interested in

15   proceeding.  We'd like to keep the mediation, Your Honor, as

16   you've stated, focused on the issues that are contained in the

17   complaint, and that's what we'd be looking for through

18   mediation.

19            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Class, are you open to proceeding on

20   a dual track here with a mediation, as Mr. Tadlock suggests,

21   being scheduled as soon as possible and a hearing date

22   scheduled in April or May so if a mediation doesn't go through

23   we have a timeline to pursue the hearing?

24            MR. CLASS:  Yes, sir.  There are a lot of facts in

25   this case and there are false information in this case.
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 1   There's a lot of paperwork and so it'll take me awhile before I

 2   do go to mediation so I want to have a bit of time to make sure

 3   I have all the facts to present to mediation.  Yes, I'm open to

 4   that.

 5            JUDGE TOREM:  Let me be clear, then, before I seek

 6   Commission staff's response, but the purpose of mediation is

 7   for the parties to reach a mutually agreed upon resolution and

 8   not put it back in my hands or, if it goes on appeal to the

 9   three appointed Commissions, this agency, what you get is, for

10   both sides, is a certainty that what's agreed to is acceptable.

11            Sometimes it's not up to any one person's satisfaction

12   but at least you had a chance to craft that and not leave it up

13   to an unbiased observer and finder of fact, such as myself or

14   my Commissioners if it goes on appeal from any decision I would

15   issue.

16            You also can control the timeline on that somewhat a

17   little bit better as well by getting together and deciding

18   what's at the heart of the matter and what might be something

19   that's a side issue that could be argued about for days in a

20   courtroom but may not, in the end, result in any financial

21   remuneration with the homeowners or any settlement or promise

22   to do something on your behalf, Mr. Class.

23            So, there's a lot of things that are more freeform and

24   which facts, the mediator decides, are relevant are really

25   which facts you all agree are relevant to getting to a
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 1   solution.  As we talked about last month, sometimes that's more

 2   direct and a different form to pursue.

 3            What I can do after today -- and I'll ask Mr. Fassio

 4   from staff's position -- is if they want to participate in

 5   mediation or leave that to the complainants.

 6            MR. FASSIO:  Thank you, Your Honor.  The Commission

 7   staff does support the parties' interest in mediation and in

 8   utilizing a settlement judge to engage in discussions.  Staff

 9   is always supportive of parties' willingness to come to

10   resolution, short of hearing.

11            Just as as a general comment, settlement negotiations

12   can resolve all issues in a complaint or can serve to narrow

13   the issues that are in dispute if the parties cannot reach for

14   a resolution.

15            So the Commission staff is supportive and would like

16   to participate in mediation that is scheduled between the

17   parties and would like to participate and be a resource, and is

18   not taking a position, again, as of yet in this case, but would

19   like to participate.

20            JUDGE TOREM:  Let me make sure that we do a couple of

21   things, then.

22            Mr. Tadlock?

23            MR. TADLOCK:  Your Honor, I just want to, for

24   clarification, mediation, as you stated, versus arbitration,

25   mediation is not binding unless both parties agree, correct?
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  That's correct.  We don't necessarily do

 2   arbitration here.  I misspoke earlier.  I was thinking of

 3   alternative dispute resolution.  That was the first "A" word

 4   that came out.  Mediation -- correct -- is something that all

 5   parties would have to agree to.

 6            As Mr. Fassio indicates, you can agree to reach a

 7   resolution on ten issues, for instance, five of them, and

 8   submit the remaining five for hearing.  It could cut down the

 9   number of issues or fully resolve the case.

10            All parties would have to agree to what's being

11   submitted and then I, as the Commission decisionmaker, would

12   make a recommendation if that is within my power to accept that

13   as a full resolution.

14            Typically if Commission staff is behind a settlement,

15   it's rare unless we find an issue of law that makes it a policy

16   or law unable for the Commission to sign off on, we might have

17   to have another condition or two, but those are rare

18   circumstances.

19            Typically, if there's an all-party issue settlement,

20   we give parties a chance to discuss that on the record, make

21   sure it was reached freely and willingly and all parties

22   understand their obligations and their compromises and then

23   settle the case that way.

24            MR. TADLOCK:  Thank you, Your Honor.

25            JUDGE TOREM:  All right.  Part of today's order is
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 1   referring case for a mediation judge to be appointed.  I'll try

 2   to see if I can have that done, sooner rather than later, and

 3   the Commission will appoint a mediation settlement judge and

 4   that person will be in contact to schedule a mediation, initial

 5   meeting, make sure he or she understands the issues and to move

 6   forward to make sure that case is right for that and that

 7   everybody is going to be willing to come and present what

 8   documents they need or other things at that time.

 9            What I think then -- today is March 2nd -- we leave

10   the rest of this month for the mediation and then we look into

11   April as a beginning.  If mediation is going well, but you need

12   more time, at that point certainly you can ask for the dates to

13   be continued, but I'd like to think that five or six weeks from

14   now we'll know if mediation is going to work on some or all

15   issues, if not, then we need to start setting some deadlines

16   for submission of documents, or exchange of witness lists and

17   documents, and finalizing the dates of the hearing.

18            Mr. Fassio, with the mediation option essentially

19   cutting out the rest of March, have an idea for a proposed

20   schedule that would suit the Commission's staff?

21            MR. FASSIO:  I did not actually discuss a proposed

22   schedule in any detail with Commission staff or with the other

23   parties.  I think, just in general, the hearing should be set

24   at such a time that the parties do not have to simultaneously

25   prepare for a hearing as well as engage in medication.

0087

 1            I guess it depends on the amount of time that the

 2   complainants and the respondents feel they need to prepare

 3   their case.  Staff is fairly flexible in that regard.

 4            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Tadlock, I know you'll have the

 5   burden of proving some of the economic damages that you've

 6   alleged.  I imagine you'll bring some of those documents to

 7   mediation, as well.  How long, say, after middle of April would

 8   you need to submit those?  I'm thinking, in this case,

 9   depending on how the mediation is set up, you might submit your

10   documents and I'd give all the other parties a chance, like

11   ten days later, to submit their documents and proposed

12   witnesses, that way Mr. Class would know exactly what he has to

13   respond to.  As in the Department of Health documents for the

14   testing, we'll just set up a date for them to file an update.

15   We'll ask Ms. Jaffe when that might be best for her clients on

16   the monthly testing schedule for the coliform and for the

17   quarterly testing for the arsenic.  But you would have the rest

18   of the burden for providing the other documents.

19            What do you think?

20            MR. TADLOCK:  Your Honor, I think we should be able to

21   be prepared and have had a chance to submit our documents by

22   the end of April.

23            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  Let me set that then for

24   Wednesday, April 27th.

25            I'm choosing that week because the Commission has a
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 1   temporary layoff date the week before and it tends to throw

 2   schedules off around here with the State budget.  The following

 3   week we get into the first full week of May.

 4            If I grant two weeks, Mr. Class, for you to review the

 5   documents that Mr. Tadlock submits -- you might have seen them

 6   already in the course of the medication -- these are the formal

 7   documents he's going to submit to hearing, would Wednesday, May

 8   11th, work for you to have.

 9            MR. CLASS:  Yes.

10            JUDGE TOREM:  Commission staff, use the same date?

11            MR. FASSIO:  Yes.

12            JUDGE TOREM:  Then it's a question of setting a

13   hearing date for the week of maybe May 23rd; that way we can

14   have the hearing conducted before the end of the month of May.

15            In my mind, I'm wondering how many days we would need

16   for a hearing.  It may be two days.  It may be only one day.

17   It depends, I guess, Mr. Tadlock, on the nature of the

18   economics that you can show and how we prove it or 38 different

19   -- potential of 37 if Ms. Caldwell has not made an appearance.

20            As in a previous order -- let me just state now --

21   looks like she will be held in default and dismissed from the

22   case.  I don't think that will be a surprise to anyone given

23   the circumstances.

24            We still have 37 people claiming, in their various

25   households, these economic damages.  I imagine we'll need
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 1   testimony from each one or an agreement that the documents can

 2   be presented and authenticated in advance and that may be

 3   something you can reach a stipulation, a formal agreement, with

 4   Commission staff and Mr. Class so we don't have a parade of

 5   witnesses.

 6            Once he'd had an opportunity to review the documents

 7   there may be an agreement that these are all the bills that

 8   were paid and that are being sought for reimbursement, I would

 9   order that.

10            So, if we reach a stipulation I imagine we can do this

11   in one day with a morning dedicated to your complaint and a

12   couple of hours dealing with the testimony from the Department

13   of Health as a witness that either you or staff could put on

14   individually or put on jointly.

15            Mr. Fassio, I'm not sure what other witnesses staff

16   might have in this case.

17            MR. FASSIO:  We're not sure yet, Your Honor, but if

18   Commission staff had a witness it would probably be limited to

19   one.

20            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Class, are you understanding what

21   I'm suggesting for the course of the hearing?

22            MR. CLASS:  Yes, sir.  I'm in agreement.

23            JUDGE TOREM:  Then let's set May 24th and 25th.  I

24   don't see any conflicts on the Commission's calendar at this

25   time.
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 1            I know this room will be in use May 26th for the

 2   monthly open meeting.

 3            Mr. Fassio, do you see any conflicts for those

 4   two days?

 5            MR. FASSIO:  The 24th and 25th?

 6            JUDGE TOREM:  Correct.

 7            MR. FASSIO:  I have no conflicts on either of those

 8   two days.

 9            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Tadlock, are you available?

10            MR. TADLOCK:  Yes, sir.

11            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Class, are you available on those

12   days?  It's a Tuesday and a Wednesday.

13            MR. CLASS:  Yes, Your Honor.

14            JUDGE TOREM:  And those will be done in person here in

15   Olympia.  I'll need to confirm the room is available, that I'm

16   not missing something else, that someone is reserving the room.

17            I'll briefly go off the record with you and come back

18   to confirm.

19            Ms. Jaffe, is there any conflict that you foresee for

20   you or your clients to be available as witnesses in that

21   proceeding?

22            MS. JAFFE:  Nothing that I'm aware of.  Not knowing

23   what Department of Health witness would be called, it's

24   practically impossible to say for certain.  I suspect we can

25   make somebody available on those dates.
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 1            JUDGE TOREM:  Again, we'll figure out from Mr. Tadlock

 2   and Mr. Fassio who they might need to call as a witness to

 3   bring in those testing results.

 4            Other procedural matters we need to take care of today

 5   or other issues we need to make sure are confirmed before the

 6   hearing?

 7            Ms. Jaffe?

 8            MS. JAFFE:  I did want to make sure you were aware

 9   that on this last Monday, Monday 28th, that Cowlitz County did

10   sign an Order appointing a receiver for the Columbia Crest

11   Estate's water system and Mr. Class is no longer the acting

12   owner of the water system.  Cowlitz County Public Works is

13   filling that role and they're going to be developing an

14   interlocal agreement with the Beacon Hill Water Sewer District

15   who actually provide the operation and maintenance of the water

16   system.

17            So, if UTC is going to be requesting any additional

18   samples, or current samples, we'd need to work that through

19   Cowlitz County and Beacon Hill Water Sewer District to go out

20   there and take any additional samples.  Any past samples that

21   have already been taken were listed in the Department of

22   Health's database can be testified to by the Department of

23   Health staff.

24            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you for raising that issue.  I've

25   seen through the Commission's news clipping service, for lack
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 1   of a better term, that there had been a proceeding due to some

 2   unpaid electrical bills and that Cowlitz County and the

 3   Department of Health were taking some actions but it was a

 4   temporary order issued in the middle of February and Mr. Class

 5   was going to have an opportunity to respond.

 6            Was that the final order entered on Monday?

 7            MS. JAFFE:  Yes, it was.  So the temporary

 8   receivership was effective February 16th and then the final

 9   receivership hearing was held this last Monday.  He is no

10   longer in current possession or control of the water system.

11   That receivership should be in place for, approximately, one

12   year and at that time the Department of Health will work with

13   the County to determine who should be the next owner of the

14   water system.

15            With that in mind, also, the Department of Health has

16   authorized me, as of today, to go ahead and withdraw the Notice

17   of Civil Penalty that is pending against Mr. Class, as well.

18   We're in the process of withdrawing that penalty statement so

19   there should not be a hearing on March 30th anymore.

20            JUDGE TOREM:  That was my next question.  Thank you

21   for anticipating that.

22            As far as proceedings involving this water system,

23   there's the receivership, and that's final.  There may be some

24   other pending proceedings before the Cowlitz County Superior

25   Court.  Is that correct?
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 1            MS. JAFFE:  The next proceeding that would be held

 2   before the Court wouldn't happen for, at least, six months,

 3   maybe nine months, assuming that we were able to get a

 4   permanent owner in place in that short period of time.  I would

 5   not anticipate anything happening, at least, within the next

 6   six months.

 7            JUDGE TOREM:  Then this Commission's proceeding on the

 8   complaint brought by the homeowners is the only other pending

 9   action that you're aware of regarding this water system?

10            MS. JAFFE:  At least until I get the administrative

11   hearing canceled for the end of March, that's correct.

12            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.

13            Mr. Class, any clarifications on that?  Is that your

14   understanding, as well?

15            MR. CLASS:  For me, the major thing is the arsenic

16   treatment system which, as now, the County is involved, but I

17   would hope the homeowners do pay attention and hopefully they

18   will follow up upon points of views, which I think they have a

19   right to do.  That's up to them.  This is something that the

20   people have to look at.  This is something that I have been

21   fighting.

22            Other than that, I believe this works good.  I'm still

23   trying to get the details of it.  How I understand it, it goes

24   into receivership and I have an asset there.  This asset I was

25   offered one dollar for.  I know it's more than one dollar.
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 1   There was no negotiation.  There was just name calling to

 2   everything --

 3            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Class, I wanted to make sure you

 4   understood, not the substance, but simply the procedural status

 5   that Department of Health is no longer going to have its

 6   hearing at the end of March and seek penalties.

 7            If I understand what the Cowlitz County Superior Court

 8   has done, you're no longer an owner or operator of the system.

 9            Is that your understanding?

10            MR. CLASS:  It is my understanding that I am not --

11   that all of, like, the County -- like the State's fine is gone

12   and all of that -- but I do believe I have a right to my asset

13   yet.  I still have 20 days to respond to the temporary

14   receivership and that I'm a bit confused there.

15            But, at this point forward, I want the people to be

16   happy.  I think I'm going to get more than a dollar for my

17   system and everybody gets what they want.  But, once again, I

18   would have them pay attention to the arsenic thing.  I think

19   that's the biggest issue right now for anybody here.

20            JUDGE TOREM:  Certainly, that's one of the issues for

21   water standard compliance that will be taken up if I get to the

22   hearing that we are now scheduling for the end of May.

23            Mr. Tadlock, are you aware of the proceedings in

24   Cowlitz County as well?

25            MR. TADLOCK:  Yes, Your Honor, we are.
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 1            I would like to make one comment, Your Honor, because

 2   it's relevant to this complaint.

 3            Now that the Department of Health has received

 4   acceptance by the Cowlitz County Commissioner's Office for the

 5   receivership for the system, that was part of our complaint

 6   that we filed.  It was a two-part complaint.  One was for

 7   financial remuneration and the second part was to request the

 8   UTC move forward on receivership for this system.

 9            JUDGE TOREM:  Right.  And as we discussed last month,

10   we can only make a recommendation in that.  So, it appears

11   that --

12            MR. TADLOCK:  So we're formerly pulling back that part

13   of our complaint to the only thing we're pressing now in the

14   complaint is the financial remuneration.

15            JUDGE TOREM:  Okay.  That will narrow the issues quite

16   a bit.  I think, again, for the triggering impact of whether or

17   not you're entitled to that is whether they're in compliance or

18   not.  That will have to be a finding that's either agreed upon

19   that the system is, or was, at some point, out of compliance

20   with the drinking water standards, if you're going to reach a

21   settlement, and if I need to make that finding in May, based on

22   the evidence presented, that will still be a relevant issue.

23            As to some of the other issues that were discussed

24   last month, the Pre-Hearing Conference Order talked about those

25   issues on paragraph nine.  What you're clarifying for me is
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 1   that the relief requested about a receivership, that's no

 2   longer relevant since it's already been done, at least in the

 3   temporary fashion, as Ms. Jaffe describes for the forthcoming

 4   year.

 5            MR. TADLOCK:  Yes, Your Honor.

 6            JUDGE TOREM:  We'll still have the other questions

 7   about the reimbursements that might be available to the

 8   complainants under Washington Administrative Code, WAC

 9   481-10-395.

10            Now, we had, at that time, said that Cowlitz County

11   was not involved in regulating the system.  For the relevant

12   time period they still would be but we may need to make sure

13   that Cowlitz County is aware of this proceeding if it affects,

14   at all, the receivership.  I'm not familiar with the

15   receivership rules and what the County might be doing.

16            Ms. Jaffe, do you know that the County is also aware

17   of this complaint?

18            MS. JAFFE:  I'm not actually 100 percent certain that

19   they are aware.  Our discussions with Cowlitz County were

20   strictly limited to whether or not they would be a willing and

21   able receiver of the water system.  We were working on a very

22   short time period.  I can't say with certainly that DOA

23   mentioned to them that there was this pending proceeding right

24   now.

25            JUDGE TOREM:  I know Mr. Class has referred to the
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 1   various assets he might have involved, but, depending on the

 2   outcome of this case, there may be liabilities, as well,

 3   depends on what the findings and the conclusions might be.

 4            So, I want to make certain that the other people

 5   taking on receivership understand that there's a potential

 6   liability, whether it be assessed against Mr. Class personally

 7   or against the system itself, would remain to be seen.  That

 8   will be an issue for the hearing as well.

 9            If it's all resolved in mediation, so be it.  If it's

10   not, that's something I can expect parties to come forward and

11   discuss who's responsible for this, whether it's the system

12   itself or an individual or both.

13            Mr. Fassio, did you have anything you want to comment

14   on as far as other issues that we have to resolve in mediation

15   or through the course of the hearing?

16            MR. FASSIO:  I think we've covered it pretty well.  I

17   didn't have anything to add, Your Honor.

18            JUDGE TOREM:  I encourage the parties, and I will make

19   sure that the mediation judge, settlement judge, whoever is

20   appointed, has access to the file.  Anything that goes on with

21   that settlement judge or mediation judge will be between the

22   parties and that judge it'll be confidential.  I won't hear

23   about what you say in that room.

24            So, it may be frustrating in some ways to think there

25   are two different judges from the Commission but I'll be
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 1   outside of that proceeding.  I won't be able to be influenced

 2   by the fact you don't reach a settlement, if that's the case,

 3   or any other things that are said.  Those are strictly in

 4   confidence.  That allows you to be much more open and honest

 5   and as candid as you can with each other as to what options are

 6   available to resolve the case or not.

 7            When we come back into a hearing at the end of May or

 8   if these deadlines at the end of April are required for filing

 9   of documents it'll be the strict rules of procedure that we

10   have in WAC 480-07, and any other guidance that are provided

11   under the applicable rules and the laws that govern this kind

12   of case.  I want the parties to be aware that the mediation

13   will be separate and I won't be privy to the information.  I

14   will be giving what information I have to the settlement judge

15   to get familiar with things but it won't be a two-way street.

16            Any questions about that?

17            Mr. Class --

18            MR. CLASS:  Because this is UTC mediation then

19   wouldn't this, in fact, become regulated forward to date?

20            JUDGE TOREM:  That's a possibility, Mr. Class.  Again,

21   the jurisdiction issue we raised as to what the statute of

22   limitations might be and whether or not when the Commission

23   began its regulation of your water system in April of 2009 are

24   one of the issues.

25            So sorting out the extent of my jurisdiction or the
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 1   Commission's jurisdiction is something that you'll have to sort

 2   out if you reach an agreement in mediation, and whether or not

 3   we come to a hearing, that will be a much more formal legal

 4   determination.  That is still on the table.  The only item

 5   being taken off from paragraph nine of Order 01 is the

 6   receivership issue.

 7            Mr. Tadlock is telling me that because that's already

 8   been handled by the County and its proceeding that the

 9   Department of Health was involved in there, there's no longer a

10   need for the Commission to recommend receivership.  It's

11   already a foregone conclusion.

12            Understood?

13            MR. CLASS:  I understand that.  At the end of the day

14   it might be that we have mediation through UTC from when I

15   began UTC regulation forward to date and then they would have

16   to, possibly, bring up a different arbitration through the

17   prior years if they wanted to contest that.

18            JUDGE TOREM:  I'll leave that for you and the parties

19   to sort out.

20            Again, if what you're suggesting that you're open to a

21   financial settlement with the homeowners, to some extent,

22   sometimes I can recommend to you -- I'm sure the mediation

23   judge would, as well, sorting out what will make people happy,

24   as I think you said, financially and what it represents and

25   what claims they release against the system or against you can
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 1   be a lot more loose as to dates at a mediation hearing than it

 2   can be in this formal proceeding.

 3            What they're focusing on May 1st, 2009, forward and

 4   backward as two separate things or just a lump sum settlement

 5   is more amenable, I'll leave that for further discussion in the

 6   mediation itself and between you, Mr. Tadlock and Mr. Fassio as

 7   to representatives of the parties that will be participating.

 8            MR. CLASS:  I was thinking in moving this forward upon

 9   a schedule.  Wouldn't the first part of this puzzle -- wouldn't

10   it be for them to -- because the burden of proof lies on them

11   -- to prove the loss or whatever they're asking of me, wouldn't

12   the mediation kind of start with them giving me their facts --

13            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Class, I think you'll find when we

14   set up the initial discussions for mediation, that's what

15   Mr. Tadlock is asking.

16            I think there will be an initial session, whether it's

17   telephonic or in person, it'll be up to the mediating judge to

18   get all the parties together and figure what's it going to take

19   to reach a resolution and is it even possible.

20            From there I would expect that all parties would want

21   the other side to prove any damages they're wanting in some

22   form, may not be to the same level as I would require in the

23   hearing but to your satisfaction that some damages were

24   incurred and your ability to make those payments, as well, if

25   you agreed to that.
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 1            You're right.

 2            You're anticipating the right issues but they're not

 3   for me to discuss further with you today.  They are for you to

 4   take up with Mr. Tadlock, either directly and have some

 5   preliminary discussions with him and maybe he'll know what you

 6   want him to bring to the first mediation session so he can see,

 7   in good faith, that you're willing to consider those.

 8            But, go ahead and wait.

 9            You'll get contact from the UTC hopefully by next week

10   with a call to set up a mutually agreeable date for mediation

11   and we'll scheduled it to be here at Commission so the judge

12   can get to know each you in person.  That seems to work better

13   to get everybody together.

14            That judge will decide if it's going to be the sort of

15   thing where you're -- I call it "middle eastern shuttle

16   diplomacy" -- where you make opening statements and then go to

17   separate corners and the Judge would surround or if you'll all

18   sit around the same table.

19            Those are style differences you can decide on at the

20   mediation session and see what the judge is comfortable with,

21   based on his or her training or experience, or what the parties

22   really need.  Sometimes it's easier to take the people out of

23   the same room.  They find it a lot more in common when they're

24   at separate tables than when they're together.

25            We'll see how that goes.
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 1            That's the kind of format you can expect to be

 2   discussing at the first session, and then if there's a need for

 3   a second session where they might be more detailed exchange of

 4   information, you can agree with that.  Okay.

 5            MR. CLASS:  I appreciate that.

 6            JUDGE TOREM:  Any other business to take up today?

 7            MR. CLASS:  Not at my end.

 8            JUDGE TOREM:  Thank you, Mr. Class.

 9            MR. TADLOCK:  No.

10            MS. JAFFE:  Not from the Department of Health.

11            JUDGE TOREM:  Mr. Fassio.

12            MR. FASSIO:  Just one clarifying question.  There was

13   some discussion about the Department of Health supplementing

14   with ongoing testing results of the system.  I don't know if

15   that has been a formal request that has been made.

16            In light of Ms. Jaffe's discussion that the system is

17   now in a receivership with the PUD, I want to pose the question

18   as to whether it's necessary to have ongoing test results of

19   the system or whether this complaint is more retrospective in

20   nature in terms of the information that would be needed in the

21   record to make a determination.

22            JUDGE TOREM:  At this point, I think going into the

23   mediation, what we have may be sufficient.  If Mr. Tadlock and

24   yourself want to work with Cowlitz County or the Department of

25   Health to bring in any further records as to 2011 or, perhaps,

0103

 1   have an opportunity later today, to look at what Mr. Class sent

 2   in to the records center.

 3            Mr. Class, I'll ask that you forward your e-mails to

 4   Mr. Tadlock and to Mr. Fassio so they have a copy of what you

 5   send in.

 6            I'm not going to have the record center formerly enter

 7   those into the record as being received for two reasons:  One,

 8   I won't have your formal submission of documents until May

 9   11th, if that's necessary; and, secondly, I want you to go back

10   and review our Administrative Code requirements for those

11   filings.

12            It's a little bit more formal than sending an e-mail

13   to the records center.  You can file things electronically, but

14   take a look at WAC 480-07, section 140 and 145.  There's some

15   detailed requirements that you have to -- one of them requires

16   a cover letter so the staff doesn't have to read all your

17   documents and figure out what they are.

18            You might appreciate that this isn't the only case

19   that we have going on.  We have some voluminous filings that

20   come in.  So, typically, an itemized cover letter is required

21   for any such filings and yours didn't have that this morning.

22            That was why the records center called me, is when

23   they get something that's not formatted correctly they want the

24   presiding officer to weigh in with the parties and let them

25   know that filing will probably be rejected.
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 1            For today's purpose, consider that it's formerly

 2   rejected by the records center; however, as circulating

 3   documents for information among the parties, that's useful, and

 4   if you choose to resubmit those on May 11th as part of the

 5   formal proceeding, or in any other format for the mediation, I

 6   encourage you to do so.

 7            MR. CLASS:  I do think that the findings of the

 8   samples from C.J. Bruno are consistent with the Department of

 9   Health.  And because I still own properties up in that

10   development, and around that development, it's in my best

11   interest that the ongoing cost to service these peoples' water

12   system in, hopefully, some kind of affordable way --

13            JUDGE TOREM:  I understand, Mr. Class.

14            MR. CLASS:  Any information they need from me I'll

15   give it.  I would suggest that if they could have just one

16   person hire somebody through the County, like C.J. Bruno -- he

17   doesn't have travel time to do the testing -- that would save

18   money.

19            JUDGE TOREM:  I want to make you aware that those test

20   results you provided might be something that addresses

21   Mr. Fassio's question about ongoing test results that are more

22   current than what I already got from Ms. Waybright.

23            It may be in the course of the mediation the judge

24   wants to see what the 2011 results are.  At that point,

25   Mr. Fassio, I think we could ask Department of Health to
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 1   provide something.  If we don't have a settlement result in the

 2   mediation then I think it would be advisable for either

 3   Mr. Tadlock to contact you and confer before the April 27th

 4   deadline whether Commission staff would want the additional

 5   testing updates.

 6            But I think the homeowners, if they want to be

 7   claiming additional items for January and February of 2011,

 8   we'll need those results, so they may need, if we're going to

 9   hearing, submit them themselves on April 27th.  But because the

10   homeowners are the complainants and not the Commission, whether

11   you'd want me to direct Ms. Waybright with the request again or

12   whether Commission staff would take that on behalf of the

13   homeowners knowing that if we have a formal hearing I will need

14   those for at least January and February when Mr. Class was in

15   charge of the system.

16            Those are the only two supplemental test results that

17   we would formerly need to request.

18            Again, I wouldn't need them now but only if we were

19   going to hearing and if they were submitted in advance of the

20   May 24th date for everyone to have a chance to review them we

21   can worry about that when we get into May, I suppose.

22            Any other procedural questions what we'll be doing

23   from this point forward?

24            Chances are you'll get an order from me in the next

25   couple of days laying out the schedule with a mediation judge
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 1   making subsequent contact to set up scheduling for the months

 2   of March and possibly into mid April.

 3            If we don't have a settlement or request for

 4   postponement the first deadline for filing from the homeowners

 5   in the complaint will be Wednesday, April 27th.

 6            The respondent water company and staff will file their

 7   proposed witness and exhibit lists on May 11th.  The hearing,

 8   assuming we have everything together -- and I'll double-check

 9   that -- if I run into a scheduling problem I'll get you on the

10   phone and give you some alternative dates.  But we're looking

11   to May 24th and 25th, presuming this room will be available.  I

12   think it will be.

13            As far as format for witness and exhibit lists,

14   typically for any witness you're going to call, I'll need name,

15   address and telephone number and a one or two sentence summary

16   of what you expect they're going to provide.

17            Some of them may be repetitive if they'll have

18   repetitive witnesses on economic damages, so you might come up

19   with one or two sentences that will be for all of the

20   witnesses.

21            On the exhibits I'll need a document showing an

22   overall listing, whether it was one or 50, how many exhibits

23   they are and how many pages each one is and then file each one

24   labeled as such with the records center.

25            The filing requirements are all set out in the
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 1   previous order from last month.  Unfortunately, it's an

 2   original and ten copies.  That can be burdensome.  Keep that in

 3   mind.

 4            Mr. Class, hopefully Mr. Tadlock's exhibits will come

 5   in first, if necessary, with the correct format and you follow

 6   that same format in filing any responsive exhibits.

 7            If you have any questions on that kind of a format

 8   it's possible that we can send you a copy of a previous case or

 9   refer you to a docket number that you can see proposed witness

10   and exhibit lists as an example and go from there.

11            Let me know or let Mr. Fassio know if you need

12   reference to one of those docket numbers to look at.

13            MR. CLASS:  That would be appreciated, yes.

14            JUDGE TOREM:  At this point, though, it won't be

15   necessary until we get into May.

16            I wish you folks luck on the mediation process.  I'll

17   talk to the chief administrative law judge Greg Kopta

18   immediately and see if we can get someone appointed this

19   afternoon.

20            MR. CLASS:  Thank you very much for the your time.

21            JUDGE TOREM:  You're welcome.

22            Anything else?

23            It's 11:20.  We are adjourned.

24            (Conclusion of proceedings.)

25   
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